
 
 
 

 
TENTATIVE AGENDA 

ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
        A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
        B. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

C.  NOTE THOSE PRESENT AND ABSENT  
  

II. SPECIAL PRESENTATION - KDL 2017 ANNUAL REPORT  
 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 IV. GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS  
 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AND ACCEPT REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS UNDER CONSENT 
 AGENDA  

A. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES:  
1. TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES – OCTOBER 8, 2018 

                       B. RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
                              1. DESJARDIN LETTER – GROUNDWATER MIXING ZONE – BRADFORD WHITE – 9/28/18 
  2. FIRE DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT – 9/18 
  3. PARK DIRECTOR’S REPORT – 10/11/18 
  4. ADA TOWNSHIP DDA MINUTES – 9/10/18 
  5. HOPE NETWORK ACTIVITY REPORT – 9/18 
  6. ADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY BOARD MINUTES – 9/13/18 
  7. GVMC MINUTES – 9/6/18 
  8. LIBRARY / COMMUNITY CENTER – DASHBOARD – 9/18  
                
 V.          APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
          A. TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
          B. APPLICATION 1, TRAIL CONSTRUCTION & REPAIRS 
          C. APPLICATION 10, SETTLERS GROVE PROJECT   
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
VII. BOARD COMMENT   
 
VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

A. ADA STREETLIGHT FIXTURE REPLACEMENT RETROFIT 
B. “VILLAGE” GARLAND INSTALLATION / TAKEDOWN 
C. RESOLUTION R-102218-1, RESOLUTION TO WAIVE FEES FOR LATE FILED PROPERTY 

TRANSFER AFFIDAVITS  
D. ORDINANCE O-102218-1, AMENDMENT TO PVM DISTRICT REGULATIONS, TO ADD 

PROVISIONS CONCERNING DURATION OF DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL 
E. GRAND VALLEY ESTATES WELL 1, PUMP AND MOTOR OVERHAUL 

 
X. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
XI.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

A Copy of the above information is available upon request M-F 8AM-5PM at the Ada Township Clerk’s Office, excluding Holidays 



DRAFT 

ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING
MINUTES 

October 8, 2018 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at 7:00 p.m.  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, 
Clerk Smith, Treasurer Moran, Trustees Hurwitz, Jacobs, LeBlanc, and Proos.  Also present: 
Planning Director Ferro, Parks Director Mark Fitzpatrick, and approximately seven community 
members.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by Jacobs, supported by LeBlanc, to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion 
carried. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION – LIBRARY/COMMUNITY CENTER UPDATE 

Scott Rantala from JLL and Ken Brandsen from Progressive A & E gave an update on the 
library/community center and showed tentative floor plans of the 28,000 square foot proposed 
building.  Board members discussed the space usage and design. 

GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Board Meeting Minutes  
Township Board Minutes – 09/24/18 
Receive and File Various Reports/Communications 
1. Treasurer’s Investment Reports – 5/31/18 revised and 8/31/18; 2. Planning Commission Minutes
– 8/16/18; 3. Johnson – Deer Problem – 9/28/18; 4. Ada Historical Society Preliminary Strategic Plan
– 2018 revised; 5. Speed Board Reports – 9/11/18; 6. Utility Advisory Board Minutes – 7/19/18; 7.
Robinson 100th Family Reunion – 9/4/18.
Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to approve the Minutes and accept the Reports
and Communications under the Consent Agenda.
Trustee Jacobs asked if any action has been taken regarding the deer issue and if the writers of
the letter have been contacted.  Supervisor Haga explained and shared copies of items and
pictures from the Robinson reunion and stated these will be given to the historical society.
Treasurer Moran explained there is a revised investment report in the packet and he has been
working on an updated investment policy.
Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 

ADA TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
Treasurer Moran  presented the following Hand Checks: #101 $23,847.04; #205 $1,679.80; #214 
$1,837.90; #590 $561.11; #591 $561.11; #592 $220.30.  Total all Hand Checks: $28,707.26.  
Warrants: #101 $41,139.82; #205 $28,994.41; #214 $1,603.55; #248 $1,080.00; #401 $6,934.25; 
#590 $44,439.77; #591 $6,742.67; #592 $577.95.  Total all Warrants: $132,262.42.  Total All Check 
and Warrants: $160,969.68.  
Moved by LeBlanc, supported by Jacobs, to approve the Warrant Report for October 8, 2018, 
in the total amount of $160,969.68.  Roll Call:  Yes – Hurwitz, LeBlanc, Proos, Jacobs, Smith, 
Moran, Haga; No - 0.  Motion carried. 

PAY APPLICATIONS #8 & 9 – SETTLER’S GROVE PARK PROJECT 
Mike Oezer, Progressive A & E, explained the request.  He stated the stream bank work is done 
and they are waiting for a few details to work out regarding the amphitheater.   
Moved by Proos, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay Application #8 to Katerberg 
VerHage in the amount of $84,391.70.  Roll Call:  Yes – LeBlanc, Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, 
Moran, Smith, Haga.  No – 0.  Motion carried.   

 IV.A.1.



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of October 8, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Moved by Proos, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay Application #9 to Katerberg 
VerHage in the amount of $84,741.30.  Roll Call:  Yes – Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Moran, Smith, 
Haga.  No  - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION #5 – AVERILL HISTORICAL MUSEUM EXPANSION & CHANGE ORDER 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, explained the project is almost complete, and a ribbon- cutting is 
planned for October 23.  Moved by Proos, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay Application 
#5 to JCK for $104,545.41.  Roll Call:  Yes – Jacobs, Hurwitz, LeBlanc, Proos, Moran, Haga, 
Smith;  No – 0.  Motion carried. 
Ken Dixon explained the need for the change order.   
Moved by Proos, supported by Moran, to approve Change Order #4 in the amount of $1,035.  
Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION #2 – FIRE STATION 1, BUNK ROOM AND STORAGE ADDITION PROJECT 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, explained the progress on the Fire Station 1 additions.  Moved by 
LeBlanc, supported by Jacobs, to approve Pay Application #2 to Thomet Construction in 
the amount of $42,933.30.  Roll Call:  Yes – Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, LeBlanc, Smith, Haga, 
Moran;  No – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

BOARD COMMENT 
 
Trustee Jacobs stated the historical museum work is beautiful. 
Clerk Smith stated that Dorothy Reneger will no longer be the recording secretary, and we need to 
find a replacement.  Also, voter registration ends October 9, and absentee voting is underway. 
Trustee LeBlanc mentioned all the people that use the playground in Settlers Grove Park. 
Trustee Proos asked if there was any update on the Knapp/Grand River Drive sign. 
Treasurer Moran stated the next Brats and Bonfires is at the Fire Station on October 19. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
There was no Unfinished Business. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
There was no New Business. 
            

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no additional public comment. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________    ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith                         Date 
Ada Township Clerk 

















Ada Township Parks & Recreation Department 

Park Director’s Report 

For October 11, 2018 

Submitted by Parks & Recreation Director Mark Fitzpatrick 

Updates on Administrative Items 

Staffing Updates 

*Interviews were conducted for the Administrative Assistant position last week and an offer has

been made to a candidate pending completion of references and background check.

*We anticipate posting for the Recreation Program Assistant position in the next week or two.

*Rob McCormick is planning to leave for the winter again on November 11.

*Our Intern Lauren Harvey had her internship accepted for credit though GVSU.   She will wrap up

her time with us in late November or early December.

Planning Initiatives 

*Wes Steer of OCBA, our long-term Landscape Architect, is retiring.  We will be meeting with a

representative from OCBA soon to review options for their services.

*Consultants from RJM Design have submitted a draft of their report on the recreation needs

assessment.  After feedback from the Advisory Board, they will submit a final report.

*Planning is underway Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) for the next fiscal year and to update the

5-year plan.  A preliminary list of items will be reviewed by the Advisory Board this week and then

by the CIP Committee later this month.  Highlights of projects under review include:
• Fund 211  Non-motorized trail improvements.  Details to be set yet. 

• Fund 208  Roselle Park non-paved trails and hydrology in north section moving to FY 19-20. 

• Fund 213  Carl Creek Wetland Preserve improvements – moved out of FY18-19 to a status of  

 “undetermined year” for implementation. 

• Fund 213  Leonard Field Park Improvements – revised plans to include a master plan process  

 in 2019, then site improvements in 2020 or 2021. 

• Fund 213  Kent County Chief Hazy Cloud Park contributions – shifted expenditures one year. 

• Fund 214  Roselle Park Improvements – next phase -including gazebo, picnic area, parking lot 

 and playground. Targeted for FY 2020-21 with DNR grant proposal due in 2019. 

• Fund 214  Ada Park Improvements – proposing 3 new gates for the parking lots.  

• Fund 214  Ada Park Improvements – proposing a new paving project of widening and repairs  

 to driveway and parking lot. Needs coordination of related future projects. 

• Fund 214   Capital Purchases -future replacement of current trucks – to add into the CIP plan. 

• Fund 214   Capital Purchase – Wood Chipper – for use with parks, trails and grounds. 

PRLP Advisory Board Items 

*New community residents interested in participating in one of the three new standing committees

have been invited to complete an application.   The new committees are:
▪ Trails (Non-Motorized Bike Path)

▪ Land Preservation and Stewardship

▪ Recreation Programs, Services and Facilities

*Members of the Advisory Board whose terms completed at the end of September were invited to

continue (Jeff VanderBerg and Kraig Schmottlach). Updates should be noted soon.

IV.B.3



   

 

 

Updates on Parks, Preserves, Trails and Related Projects 
 

Ada Township Park 
 

*The new tennis and pickleball courts have had a lot of daily use.  The contractor is still working to 

stabilize the landscaping around them.  Staff are still working on signs and donor recognition items.  

*The trail projects include renovation of the paved trail along Buttrick drive and the paved paths within the 

arboretum.  These are mostly completed but each project still has some follow up to complete.   

*Fall Shelter and Gazebo reservations wrap up the third week of October.  We will start winterizing those 

facilities the last week of October.  Reservation for 2019 will start in December. 

*Field use for softball and frisbee are done now. Field rentals for soccer finish at the end of October. 

*Volunteers and staff continue on the stewardship needs of the site. 

*Two Boy Scouts have been interviewed to conduct Eagle Scout Projects in the park.  Implementation  

  would be next spring. 

*A Girl Scout group from Troop 4504 has built three small benches that they plan to donate to Ada Park.   

  We will set the benches near the playground. 

*Recent storms effected trees, computers and our phone lines.  Repairs have been underway. 

 

Roselle Park 
 

*Work on the non-paved trails and hydrology in the north section of the park is getting divided into a two-

year process.  These changes will be reflected in the CIP updates.  A component of the project requires a 

DEQ permit which is not feasible to complete yet this year. 

*The next development phase of the park is targeted for FY 2020-21. The CIP will also reflect this. The 

project includes a gazebo, accessible picnic area, renovated parking lot by the silos and additions to the 

playground. A DNR grant proposal is due in March of 2019. 

*Room rentals have been steady for non-profits, local community groups and businesses.  We have had 

several park education programs there this fall and will have a few more in October and November. The 

facility will also be used for the November 6 elections.     

*The Rules Committee is actively reviewing policies and procedures for private rental use, hoping to get 

that aspect opened up to the community soon. 

*Volunteers and staff continue on the stewardship needs of the site. 

 

Leonard Field Park 
 

*The trail projects include work to repair the parking lot.  That has been started with some work to continue 

over the next couple weeks. 

*Improvements to the park are under review with the CIP process.  The goal now is to keep working on the 

major maintenance items while we develop a master plan for the park in 2019.  That plan will help clarify 

and prioritize improvement goals.  Some aspects under review include creating better accessibility in the 

park and to the field, repairs/replacements to the fences, lights and scoreboard, repairs or changes to the 

observation decks and access to the river. 

*Softball games have wrapped up for the season.   

*“Beers at the Bridge” events are again scheduled for next summer. 

 

Settler’s Grove – Riverfront Park  
 

*The park is really starting to come together. We opened the bathroom, playground, picnic area at the 

end of August along with the opening of the “General Store”.    River bank restoration work is getting 

completed and work is underway for the pathway through the park.   

*Final designs of the amphitheater/deck/stage have yet to be completed before construction can begin. 

Some Cottonwood trees have been removed to make that area more usable for events. 

*No date set yet for a formal ribbon cutting or “naming” event but we anticipate one to be held. 

*The area is busy on fair weather days with most activity around the “General Store” and playground. 

 



 

Grand River Natural Area 
 

*Basic maintenance has been kept up on this site. 

*The trail repair projects include repairs to the paved bike path at this site.   That work has not been started 

yet.  We still expect to be completed this fall. 

 

Carl Creek Crossings Preserve 

 

*Park staff and volunteers continue with regular maintenance and stewardship work. 

*The site gets daily use by visitors. 

 

Carl Creek Wetland Preserve 
 

*The Land Conservancy of West Michigan did their annual inspection of the site and provided us with a 

report.  Priority issues include replacing border marker signs. A stewardship workday is being set up 

with the LCWM to address this. 

*The LCWM report included new GPS data points. We are working to incorporate more GPS into our  

  management tools.  

 

Knapp Corners Preserve  
 

*Trevor from VIRIDIS Design Group has submitted a proposal to rectify the issues with “readability” 

of the new sign.   That proposal will be reviewed by both the Advisory Board and Township Board 

before action is taken. 

*General maintenance and work on the landscape initiatives continue weekly.  Some restoration may 

be needed by the contractor as part of their one-year warranty. 

 

Bike Paths / Non-Motorized Trails 

 

*Repairs to the path are incorporated into the trails project contracted with Jordan Intercoastal.  The 

Buttrick Drive and Fire Station sections have been worked on but other areas are still to be done. 

*Staff have been progressing through the entire trail systems to clear overgrown branches and weeds.   

*Several of the bridges and boardwalks have been an issue on wet days creating slippery surfaces.   Staff 

have been working their way through them with treatments of power washing and deck cleaners. Warning 

signs are also being set up along the routes. 

 
Updates on Recreation and Education Programs 

 

*Fall community and school programs are underway.  We have kept the level of activities lower than 

normal to focus on maintenance needs. 

*Upcoming family programs include evening events of “Creatures of the Night” and “Bats”.   A recent star 

program held at Roselle Park was assisted by the Grand Rapids Amateur Astronomical Association which 

brought out telescopes for visitors.   A clear sky made it a nice event. 

*The Kid’s Garden program finished up at the end of September.  We will need to work on removing the 

materials from that site before next spring when the library parking lot construction begins.  No decision has 

been made yet on the future of that program. 

*Fall softball wrapped up in early October.  Rob will be generating a 2018 report and schedules for 2019. 

*AYSO soccer will continue through the end of October as a facility rental. 

*Zig Zag Ultimate Frisbee completed their field rental series.  They are interested in partnering with 

us for future programs. 

*Winter program information is due for the next Adaview newsletter on October 19. 

*We are working on a program schedule for 2019 to prepare for budgets and future rentals needs. 

*Three “Beers at the Bridge” events are scheduled for 2019:  June 21, July 19 and August 16.   Other special 

events and tournaments will be scheduled soon. 

*Once we complete the recreation needs assessment, we will assess the level of future recreation and 

education programs we wish to plan for.  



ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 10, 2018 MEETING 
ADA, MICHIGAN 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Terry Bowersox, George Haga, Bryan Harrison, Margaret Idema, 
Devin Norman, Dawn Marie Coe (arrived late), Justin Knapp (arrived late), Ted Wright 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Walt VanderWulp 
STAFF PRESENT: Jim Ferro, Planning Director, Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator, Adina 
Winczewski, Administrative Assistant, Kevin Moran, Ada Township Treasurer 
PUBLIC PRESENT: Kristen Wildes, Ada Historical Society 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved by Norman, seconded by Idema to approve the agenda as presented.  

Motion passed unanimously. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 13 MEETING

Norman stated a sentence should be added to section VI in the first paragraph so it would be clearer to the 
reader that two separate liquor licenses are being talked about.   

It was moved by Haga, seconded by Harrison to approve the minutes as amended. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. REQUEST FOR FUNDING FROM THE ABA FOR TINSEL, TREATS, AND TROLLEYS

Hilbrands stated the Ada Business Association is requesting sponsorship in the amount of $2,500 from 
the DDA which is consistent with what the DDA has provided in funding in previous years for this event.  
The board reviewed sponsorship packages as presented in their board packets.    

Norman stated, Harrison agreed, that it would be nice for the DDA to have some additional recognition as 
one of the largest sponsors.  The DDA could purchase the Bridge Lighting Package but still give $2,500.  
Harrison stated it would bring awareness to what the DDA does.  Hilbrands stated he will follow up and 
make sure the Bridge Lighting Package is available. 

It was moved by Coe, seconded by Haga, to approve funding of $2,500 for the Tinsel, Treats, and 
Trolleys event, including the Bridge Lighting Package.     

Motion passed unanimously. 

V. RECOMMENDATION FOR ADA STREETLIGHT FIXTURE
REPLACEMENT/RETROFIT PURCHASE

Hilbrands provided a memo and chart in the board packets explaining the costs of replacing versus 
retrofitting streetlight fixtures.  The low proposal to replace the fixtures comes from Bazen Electric 
Company for $70,958.  Retrofitting the old fixtures has a lower cost, but will result in two different light 
fixtures within the Village. The low proposal to retrofit the fixtures comes from Vankempen for 

IV.B.4



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the September 10, 2018, 2018 Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 
$2,713.39.  The DDA has budgeted $35,000 for this project to split the cost with the Township and it is 
also included in the Capital Improvement’s Plan for 2018. 
 
Hilbrands stated the Building Committee met recently and recommend replacing the fixtures.   
 
After board discussion, it was decided to postpone action until the October meeting in order for board 
members to visit the older streetlights and the newer streetlights at night and see the differences for 
themselves.   
 
VI. REQUESTS FOR 2019-2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS  

 
Hilbrands stated Capital projects are projects that have a life expectancy of more than 3 years.  Also, the 
cost of the project or facility is $10,000 or more.  The deadline to submit the projects is September 21st.  
 
Hilbrands stated there was one project mentioned at the last Citizens Council meeting for an entrance sign 
on Fulton, coming into the Village.  Currently, there is not a welcome sign coming into the Village from 
the east.    
 
Idema stated the sidewalk bricks on the Scooper’s side of the street are uneven and that could possibly be 
on the Capital Improvements Plan.  Norman asked if that is part of the Ada Drive/Thornapple River Drive 
reconstruction.  Ferro stated, yes, all the bricks in front of the hardware store are part of that 
reconstruction.   
 
Hilbrands stated that VanderWulp has mentioned sidewalks with snow melt as a possible project.  Coe 
stated snow melt is a very important thing to have to encourage walkers in the village during winter.  
Hilbrands stated he will have to work with the Township Engineer to get cost estimates. 
 
Haga requested that if any board members come up with project ideas after today’s meeting, to give those 
to Hilbrands. 
 
Idema inquired if the orange hand bench in front of Nonna’s: The Trattoria could be removed. 
 
Coe inquired if Speedway has any plans to renovate.  Haga stated he has not heard of any such plans.    

 
VII. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a. Status of Riverfront Park Construction 
 

Ferro stated work is ongoing on the bank stabilization with erosion control.  After the heavy 
equipment work is finished, the rest of the concrete work will be finished including a concrete 
path down by the river.  Final planting of seedlings won’t happen until early December.  Also in 
progress are design modifications to the outdoor performance space.   

 
b. Community Center/Library Building Update 

 
Ferro stated a meeting between the Building Committee and consultants will be at 12:30pm 
tomorrow.  Options for the exterior character of the building will be reviewed.  They will also be 
looking at final square footage numbers, scaling it down slightly to 24,000 square feet for budget 
purposes. 
 
Idema asked why the square footage is being scaled down.  Ferro stated it is for budget reasons 
and because the committee would like to emphasize quality of space not just large space.       

 



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the September 10, 2018, 2018 Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 
c. Potential Locations for 2019 Farmers’ Market  

 
Hilbrands stated that due to the construction of the Community Center/Library next year, the 
Township has been working with the Market Manager to evaluate alternative locations for the 
Farmers’ Market.  Some ideas so far are River Street, Leonard Field lot, and Spectrum lot.  The 
goal is to bring a recommendation to the DDA at the October meeting.  
 
Idema inquired why there are fewer vendors this year compared to last year.  It is not motivating 
to go when there is not a lot of selection.  Hilbrands stated that would be a better question for the 
Market Manager and he will follow up with her.    
 

d. DDA Financial Report, 8/31/18 
 
Hilbrands reviewed the Financial Report memo presented in the board packet.  There was a $300 
payment for the design of the Village banenrs.  With respect to the Farmers’ Market, the Market 
has a net positive income to date of $2,067.46 for the 2018 season.  Revenues to date total 
$7,710.00 or 72.7% of the budgeted total.  A $1,000 sponsorship check from Spectrum is still 
expected.  
 

VIII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

Bowersox stated, in regards to the 2018 Tinsel, Treats & Trolleys report that was provided in the board 
packet, he noticed that Nonna’s Cafe, Scooper’s and Ada Hardware are not on the list. He asked if they 
have not been approached about participating, or if they are not interested in participating. Hilbrands 
stated that all Ada businesses should have been approached about participating. Harrison stated they pay 
taxes to the DDA so they do participate in some way. 
 
Coe stated she and Harrison attended the Parks, Recreation and Land Preservation Needs input meeting 
and inquired if there will be a summary of findings.  Haga stated the PRLP Committee will be meeting 
this week and should get the summary report.  
 
Hilbrands reminded the Board that the November meeting will be on November 5th due to the office being 
closed on November 12th for Veterans Day.    
   
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no public comment. 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Devin Norman, Secretary 











1 

Minutes of September 13, 2018 
Ada Historical Society 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Present:  Crosby, DeGood, Mieras, Moran, Mrcana, Thompson, Veldkamp, 
Wildes.  

Absent:  Dixon, Haga, Hoover, Sefton, Vierson. 

Others Present:  M. Bolhuis - Historian, D. Bolhuis.    

1).  The meeting was called to order President Veldkamp.  

2).  Approval of the Agenda.  Mieras would like to add an update on the ribbon 
cutting ceremony under committee reports.  The agenda was approved on 
motion by Crosby, supported by Moran.  The motion carried. 

3).  The Minutes of August 9, 2018, were approved on motion by Crosby, 
supported by Moran.  The motion carried.   

4). Committee Reports 

a. Capital Campaign Committee Report
Crosby reported we have roughly $19,000 to go.  Crosby and Mieras
are continuing to work on a follow up list for additional contributions.
Crosby related the interior designer is contributing her design work.
Crosby related she has not heard from the Consumers Energy
foundation regarding a grant.  Crosby related the job is coming in
under contract which will leave us a cushion for the exhibit rooms.
Wildes asked if we have a contribution from Beer at the Bridge.
Veldkamp related we should know that by the end of September.
Moran related a payment was approved to JKB on Monday.  They are
three weeks behind schedule.  Wildes related she wants to be sure all
the paperwork is in order for the State of Michigan.  Moran related the
bid came in at $594,072 with a credit of $7,928.  The total project is
$586,072.  The Township will receive $50,000 from MCAA.  The Township
has already received $42,500 from MCAA which leaves us $55,928 in
the building fund.  Wildes related the bill from Custer Office will be
coming out of that.  There is also a painting bill that was not authorized.
Crosby related Veldkamp is working on a project to get the first room
started.

IV.B.6



2 
 

Mieras then handed out the tentative ribbon cutting ceremony 
information and schedule with responsibilities for each board member.       
 

b. Finance Committee.  Moran presented the Profit & Loss Report May 
through August, 2018; and the Balance Sheet as of August 31, 2018.  
Moran related at the end of August there was $10,663.77 in the 
checking account.  The building account balance is $308,670.71.   

 
M. Bolhuis presented the Donation Report and related seven books 
were sold by the Township.  She will be getting ribbon for the Christmas 
wreaths next week.    
 
Moran further related the sales tax issue with the State of Michigan has 
been taken care of.  We owe nothing at this point.   
 
Mrcana supported by Crosby moved to approve the financial reports.  
The motion carried.   
   

c. Display Committee.   DeGood related it is getting closer.  Wildes 
related she is working on a rivers, bridges and dams display room.  The 
new big room will house fur traders and Native American exhibits.  
Wildes related Pat Sullivan will frame all the Jean Rockett paintings for 
us.  We will have that art installation while working on the rooms.  M. 
Bolhuis related it is wonderful have Kristen with all her wonderful ideas.   

 
d. Collections.   Wildes related Cheryl Collins, Darwin Nellist’s sister brought                   
in some items of Darwin’s including a 27 page scrapbook.   She would like 
these to be accepted.  Thompson supported by Crosby moved to accept 
the items into our collection.  The motion carried.            
 
e.  Facilities Committee.  Moran related the phone in the office is not 

working.  The lights in the barn are now working again.  Moran further 
related he, George, Ken, and Travis are working on getting the barn 
painted.  Also, the fence around the garden needs work as well as the 
flag pole.       

  
f.  Programs and Education.   Wildes asked if the Board would like to pay 
and participate in Tinsel, Treats and Trolley this year.  The members 
responded affirmatively and authorized Moran to send payment.   
 
g.  Membership Committee.   Mrcana reported there is a problem in 

getting people to sign up as members.  A discussion ensued regarding 
membership levels and marketing strategy.     

 



3 
 

Tri-River Museum Association.  M. Bolhuis related the last Tri-River meeting 
was held August 21st in Portland.  Most of the bus tickets for the September 
27 trip have been sold.  It is time to get ads in for the 2019 booklet.  
Belding will no longer be able to hold the annual July luncheon.  Alternate 
venues are being looked at.   The Spring into the Past Small Museum Tour 
will be the first weekend in May 2019.  The next Tri-River meeting will be 
September 18 in Byron Center.   
 
h. Publicity Committee.   Wildes related the newsletter deadline is the end 

of the month.  Al has already submitted an article for the newsletter.   
 
5)  Old Business.  Strategic Plan 2018.  Wildes related there is one small 
change under Goal #3:  Strengthen the Society’s collections.  Add “revise 
collections policies”.  She would like to vote on adopting the Strategic 
Plan at the October meeting.   
 
6)  New Business.    Moran related he would like to form a Tinsel, Treats and 
Trolley event committee. 
   
7)  Open Discussion.  None. 
 
8) Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 2:35 pm.    

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Marilyn Thompson, Secretary   
 
   













































MEMORANDUM 

Date: 10/12/18 

TO: Ada Township DDA Board 
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planning Director 
RE: Village Decorative Streetlight Fixture Replacement/Retrofit 

Attached is a summary of three proposals solicited from electrical contractors to carry out either of the 
following two approaches to upgrading the 64 decorative streetlamps that were installed in the Village 
years ago: 

1. replace the 175 watt metal halide lamps in the existing fixtures with 45 watt LED bulbs that
produce equivalent illumination output.

2. replace the entire existing fixtures with new fixtures – the same fixture that has been installed on
reconstructed Headley Street and Ada Drive, and the new River St. This is the Lumecon “Ring of Fire”
LED fixture, a 58 watt fixture that produces a higher illumination level than the old fixtures in the
Village.

Comparison of Options: 

It is suggested that the choice of which upgrade option to pursue be evaluated based on the following 
factors: 

• Initial cost.
• Time required to recover the initial cost from annual operating cost savings (Return on

Investment).
• Condition of existing fixtures
• Quality of Product
• Aesthetics and illumination levels
• Costs not accounted for in this analysis.

These criteria are discussed below. 

Initial cost: 

The attached table provides a financial comparison of the two upgrading options, for each of the 3 
contractors who have provided quotes. 

There is a significant initial cost difference between the two options, with the bulb retrofit of the current 
fixtures being far less costly than replacing the fixtures. Based on the quotes provided, replacing the entire 
fixtures has an initial cost approximately 10X the cost of simply replacing the bulbs. 

Both options would result in significant savings in annual electrical power costs, with the bulb retrofit 
option providing slightly greater annual cost savings ($10,663 per year savings compared to $9,353 per 
year savings for the fixture replacement option).   

IX. A



Memo to Township Board 
Village Decorative Street Light Upgrade 
October 12, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Return on Investment: 
 
The initial cost of the bulb replacement option is recovered within less than one year from lower electrical 
power costs, based on all 3 quotes. The cost of the fixture replacement would be recovered in 7.5 to 9.5 
years, based on the 3 quotes. 
 
Condition of existing fixtures: 
 
Most of the existing fixtures were installed in the mid-1990’s, with those on Bronson St., west of Ada 
Drive (9 fixtures) installed more recently, in 2011. Many of the older fixtures have peeling paint on the 
“fitter” component located between the top of the pole and the decorative globe, as shown in the attached 
photos. These will all need to be re-finished at some point, an additional costs that is not accounted for in 
the cost comparison table. Many of the older fixtures also have globes that have become dis-colored over 
time. The existing fixtures are also subject to insect and dust/dirt intrusion inside the globes. 
 
Quality of product/warranty: 
 
The Lumecon fixture is a Michigan-made product, “built in Farmington Hills, MI with nearly all US parts 
and some foreign components.” The electrical components are warranted for 10 years. The globe has a 
20-year warranty which includes resistance to yellowing. The Lumecon fixture also has a built-in surge 
suppressor. The LED’s are rated for an average life of 50,000 hours. 
 
The replacement LED bulb is made in China by Satco Products, Inc., a U.S. based company founded in 
1966. The LED bulb has a 5-year warranty, with an average rated life of 100,000 hours. A surge 
suppressor accessory can be included for an additional cost. 
 
Aesthetics and illumination levels: 
 
We currently have two different styles of decorative lighting along the streets in the Village. Replacement 
of the older fixtures with the newer Lumecon fixture would eliminate this visual inconsistency. 
 
The Lumecon fixture provides a higher level of illumination on the streets and sidewalks than provided by 
the old fixtures with the replacement LED bulb. In addition, the design of the Lumecon fixture focuses 
and directs the illumination toward the ground surface in front of the fixture, and limits the amount of 
light spread in a horizontal and upward direction. This is referred to in the lighting industry as a “Type 3” 
light distribution. The old existing fixtures with the replacement LED bulb provide no directional control 
of the light emitted from the fixture, emitting light in all directions, including toward the sky. A 
comparison of the fixtures at night indicates that the Lumecon fixtures produce less objectionable 
horizontal glare. 
 
Costs not accounted for in this analysis: 
 
As mentioned above, many of the old fixtures have peeling paint and need re-finishing, the cost of which 
has not been determined. Replacement of discolored globes is another potential future cost that has not 
been determined. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Both the DDA Board and the Township Board’s Building Committee have recommended that the older 
fixtures be replaced with the Lumecon fixtures.  Award of the project to Bazen Electric Company at a 
cost of $70,958 is recommended. $35,000 is allocated in both the General Fund and DDA Fund approved 
budgets for the project. 























MEMORANDUM

Date: 10/10/18 

TO: Township Board 
FROM: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator 
RE: Garland Installation/Takedown Quotes 

Last winter season the cost for the installation and takedown of garland on Village light posts 
was split 50-50 between the DDA and the Township. Prior to last year garland was installed by 
the Township’s Buildings and Grounds staff. 

Quotes have been received from three different companies for providing garland 
installation/takedown services. Attached is a table summarizing and comparing the quotes. The 
low quote is from RRR Lawn and Landscape at $2,612, which at a 50% split with the DDA 
would cost the Township $1,306. 

At their meeting on October 8th, the DDA Board recommended that the Township use RRR 
Lawn and Landscape for the installation and removal of garland on Village light posts, and once 
again split the cost 50-50 with the DDA. 

IX. B.

















MEMORANDUM
10/11/18 

TO: Ada Township Board  
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planning Director 
RE: Amendment to PVM District Regulations, to add provisions concerning duration of 

development plan approval.   

Overview of Proposed Amendment: 

At its September 10 meeting, the Township Board postponed action on this proposed amendment, and 
referred the amendment back to the Planning Commission for possible revisions. Specific concerns that 
were expressed by Township Board members included the following: 

• Concern with potential for granting an unlimited number of approval extensions.
• Ambiguity and lack of definition as to the meaning of the phrase “diligent progress.”

At its September 20 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended that the amendment be approved 
with the following revisions: 

1. Reword Par. g(1) to read as follows:

(1) A PVM district development plan approval granted on or after the effective date of the
amendment ordinance enacting this Sec. 78-480 (g) shall be valid for a period of eighteen (18) months
from the date of approval by the planning commission or zoning administrator, whichever granted the
original approval. Plans granted approval prior to the effective date of the amendment ordinance enacting
this Sec. 78-480 (g) shall be valid for a period of eighteen (18) months following said effective date.
During the period of plan approval validity, commencement of construction and diligent progress toward
completion shall be undertaken

2. Reword Par. g(2) to read as follows:

(2) If construction has not commenced and diligent progress toward completion taken place prior to
the expiration of the plan approval period,  a building permit has been issued within eighteen (18) months
from the date of plan approval, the plan approval shall remain valid so long as the building permit
remains valid. If no building permit has been issued within eighteen (18) months from the date of plan
approval, the development plan approval shall be deemed expired and no longer valid.

3. Reword Par. g(4) to read as follows:

(4) Successive A maximum of two (2) one (1) year extensions of development plan approval may be
granted.

Summary and Recommendation: 

Issuance of a building permit provides a much more objective and definite criterion for determining the 
duration and validity of a development plan approval. A limit on number of extensions of plan approval 
that may be granted has been added. 

Approval of the attached zoning ordinance as recommended by the Planning Commission is requested. 
Also attached is the staff report to the Planning Commission regarding the proposed revisions. 

IX. D.




























	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE
	Garland Memo to Township Board-10-10-18.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Memo to TB-10-11-18.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Tentative agenda 102218.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE

	Tentative agenda 102218.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE

	Tentative agenda 102218.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE




